SATTE

j.

BOOK

SUPPLIED OF

### Amendment of Bylaws Recorded February 16, 1996 Fee No. 96024180

By resolution adopted	October 18, 1997	the Boa	rd of Directors
amends the Bylaws as follow	s:		

### ARTICLE III MEMBERS MEETINGS

Article III, Item 3.1 Annual Meeting, is changed to read as follows:

3.1 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the members shall be held at 7:00 p.m. on the third Wednesday in March of every year at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other time, date, or place as may be determined by the Board of Directors. At such meeting the members entitled to vote shall elect a Board of Directors and transact such other business as may come before the meeting, consistent with the notice provisions of ORS 63.217, which require notice of the meeting to include a description of any matter or matters which must be approved by the members.

# ARTICLE IV DIRECTORS

Article IV, Items 4.3 Election and Term of Office, and 4.8 Annual Meetings, are changed to read as follows:

4.3 Election and Term of Office. Directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of the members by a majority vote of the members present at the meeting; provided however, that a quorum of members is present. Directors shall serve a three year term, or until their successors have been elected and take office, and may be elected for successive terms. The initial Board of Directors shall serve terms as follows:

Position 1- 1 year term

Position 2 - 2 year term

Position 3 - 3 year term

4.8 Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held on the fourth Wednesday in March, or at such date, time and place, as may be determined by the Board of Directors upon notice as provided in Section 4 11

2

Recorded in the County of Multnomah, Oregon C. Swick, Deputy Clerk

98052065 3:11pm 03/31/98

013 302947 06 02 000203 C06 2 0.00 10.00 0.00 3.00 0.00 A new article is added as follows:

# ARTICLE IX FISCAL YEAR

The Fiscal year will begin on February 1 and will end on January 31 of the following year.

ONEONTA TOWNHOMES HOME  By: Lhyllis Flury, Secretary	COWNERS' ASSOCIATON, INC.		
STATE OF OREGON	) ) ss		
COUNTY OF MULTNOMAH	)		
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of 1998, by Phyllis Flury who is the Secretary of Oneonta Townhomes Homeowner's Association, Inc.			
OFFICIAL SEAL SUZANNE G. O'HALLORAN NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON COMMISSION NO. 056635 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES AUG. 12, 2000	Notary Public for Oregon My Commission Expires 8-12-2000		

BYLAWS
OF
ONEONTA TOWNHOMES
HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC.

This instruct of the life of the or Edding ref. of The complete the action to an array of the before grand, by an array of the before the short oper the other.

ARTICLE I

The name of the Corporation is Oneonta Townhomes Homeowners' Association, Inc., an Oregon nonprofit corporation (the "Corporation").

#### ARTICLE 11 PURPOSE AND POWERS

- 2.1 Purpose. The Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for the benefit of the owners of living units in the townhome development, known as Oneonta Townhomes, located in the county of Multnomah, Oregon.
- 2.2 Powers. Subject to the foregoing purposes and the powers and obligations set forth in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions of Oneonta Townhomes, the Corporation shall have and may exercise all the rights and powers of a nonprofit corporation under the Oregon Monprofit Corporation Act.

#### ARTICLE III MEMBERS MEETINGS

3.1 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the members shall be held at 2 p.m. on the third Wednesday in March of every year at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other time, date, or place as may be determined by the Board of Directors. At such meeting the members entitled to vote shall elect a Board of Directors and transact such other business as may come before the meeting, consistent with the notice provisions of ORS 63.217, which require notice of the meeting to include a description of any matter or matters which must be approved by the members.

96 24180

19/12

1

Leterac 4. POBLITY NATIONAL TITLE 80

- 3.2 Special Meetings. The Corporation shall hold special meetings of members at any time on the call of the President or the Board of Directors, or on demand in writing by members of record holding at least 10 percent of the votes entitled to be cast on any matter proposed to be considered at the special meeting.
- 3.3 Notice. Written notice stating the place, date, and time of the meeting, and in case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date of the meeting either personally or by mail, by or at the direction of the President or Secretary, to each member of record entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, the notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the members at the member's address as it appears on the current member record of the Corporation, with postage prepaid.
- 3.4 Waiver of Notice. A member may, at any time, waive any notice required by these bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Oregon Nonprofit Corporation Act. The waiver must be in writing, be signed by the member, and be delivered to the Corporation for inclusion in the minutes or filing with the corporate records. A member's attendance at a meeting waives any objection to: (a) lack of notice or defective notice of the meeting, unless the member at the beginning of the meeting objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting; and (b) consideration of a particular matter at the meeting that is not within the purpose or purposes described in the meeting notice, unless the member objects to considering the matter when it is presented.
- 3.5 Voting. The Corporation shall prepare on a current basis an alphabetical list of the names, addresses, and membership dates of all the members. The Corporation shall prepare on a current basis through the time of the membership meeting a list of members who are entitled to vote at the meeting. The Corporation shall make the list of members available for inspection by any member for the purpose of communication with other members concerning the meeting, beginning two business days after notice of the meeting is given for which the list was prepared and continuing through the meeting, at the Corporation's principal office or at a reasonable place identified in the meeting notice. The Corporation shall make the list of members available at the meeting, and any

member, the member's agent or attorney shall be entitled to inspect the list for any proper purpose at any time during the meeting or any adjournment. Members shall have the voting rights as specified in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions of Oneonta Townhomes Homeowners' Association, Inc.

3.6 Quorum: Vote Required. The majority of the members entitled to vote on a matter, represented in person or by proxiss, shall constitute a quorum with respect to that matter at any meeting of the members. If a quorum is present, action on a matter, other than the election of directors, is approved if the votes cast in favor of the action exceed the votes cast in opposition, unless the vote of a greater number is required by the Oregon Monprofit Corporation Act or the Articles of Incorporation, Election of directors is governed by Article fV: Section 4.3.

### ARTICLE IV

- 4.1 Powers. The Board of Directors shall manage the business and affairs of the Corporation and exercise or direct the exercise, of all Corporate powers.
  - 4.2 Number. The number of directors shall be three.
- elected at the annual meeting of the members by a majority vote of the members present at the meeting; provided however, that a quorum of members is present. Directors shall serve until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors, or until their successors have been elected and take office, and may be elected for successive terms; provided, however, that the initial directors shall serve for a term of two years.
- 4-4 Removal. A director may be removed, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the directors then in office, at any meeting of the Board of Directors. The rotice of such meeting shall state that the purpose or one of the purposes of the meeting is the removal of the director or directors involved.
- 4.5 Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors for any reason, including a vacancy resulting from an

3

increase in the number of directors, shall be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office.

- 4-6 Resignation. Any director may resign at any time by delivering written notice of resignation to the President or Secretary. Such resignation shall be effective on receipt unless it is specified therein to be effective at a later time, and acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary.
- 4-7 Compensation. Directors shall serve without compensation for services. A director may receive reimbursement for actual and reasonable expenses incurred in performing his or her duties upon the approval of the Board of Directors.
- 4-8 Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the adjournment of the annual meeting of members, or at such date, time and place determined by the Board of Directors upon notice as provided in Section 4.11.
- 4.9 Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, establish monthly or other regular meetings of the board, the specific date, time and place to be determined by the President.
- 4.10 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or any two directors.
- 4.11 Notice of Meetings. Written notice of the annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least ten days before the meeting. Written notice of a special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least two days before the meeting. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice. The notice shall, in each case, specify the date, time and place of the meeting and notice shall be sufficient if actually received by the required time or if mailed not less than five days before the required time. Mailed notices shall be directed to the director's address showing on the corporate records or to the director's actual address ascertained by the person giving notice. Oral notice may be delivered in person or by telephone. Except as otherwise required by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these bylaws, either the business to be transacted

4

member, the member's agent or attorney shall be entitled to inspect the list for any proper purpose at any time during the meeting or any adjournment. Members shall have the voting rights as specified in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions of Oneonta Townhomes Homeowners' Association, Inc.

3.6 Quorum: Vote Required. The majority of the members entitled to vote on a matter, represented in person or by proxies, shall constitute a quorum with respect to that matter at any meeting of the members. If a quorum is present, action on a matter, other than the election of directors, is approved if the votes cast in favor of the action exceed the votes cast in opposition, unless the vote of a greater number is required by the Oregon Nonprofit Corporation Act or the Articles of Incorporation. Election of directors is governed by Article IV; Section 4.3.

## ARTICLE IV

- 4.1 Powers. The Board of Directors shall manage the business and affairs of the Corporation and exercise or direct the exercise, of all Corporate powers.
  - 4.2 Number. The number of directors shall be three.
- 4.3 Election and Term of Office. Directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of the members by a majority vote of the members present at the meeting; provided however, that a quorum of members is present. Directors shall serve until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors, or until their successors have been elected and take office, and may be elected for successive terms; provided, however, that the initial directors shall serve for a term of two years.
- 4-4 Removal. A director may be removed, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the directors then in office, at any meeting of the Board of Directors. The rotice of such meeting shall state that the purpose or one of the purposes of the meeting is the removal of the director or directors involved.
- 4.5 Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors for any reason, including a vacancy resulting from an

3

at, nor the purpose of any meeting of the Board of Directors need be specified in the notice.

- 4.12 Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given to any director, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the director entitled to such notice, whether before or after the event specified in the waiver, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Furthermore, the attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.
- 4.13 Action Without a Meeting. Any action that is required or permitted to be taken by the directors at a meeting may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action is signed by all of the directors entitled to vote on the matter. The action shall be effective on the date when the last signature is placed on the consent.
- 4.14 Meeting by Telephone Conference. The Board of Directors may hold a meeting by conference telephone or similar equipment, by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other. Participation in such meeting shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.
- 4.15 Quorum: Majority Vote. A majority of the number of directors in office at the time of a meeting of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors. The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless a different number is required by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these bylaws. A minority of the directors, in the absence of a quorum, may adjourn and reconvene from time to time, but may not transact any business.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS

5

- 5.1 Designation. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. Such other officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected by the Board of Directors and shall have such powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board. The same individual may hold two or more offices.
- 5.2 Qualifications. An officer must be a member of the Board of Directors.
- 5-3 Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until a successor is duly elected or until the officer's resignation, death, or removal.
- 5.4 Resignation. An officer may resign at any time by delivering written notice of resignation to the President or Secretary. Such resignation shall be effective upon receipt unless it is specified to be effective at a later time. The Board of Directors may reject any postdated rejection by notice in writing to the resigning officer.
- 5.5 Removal. The Board of Directors may remove any officer with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person removed. Election of an officer shall not of itself create contract rights.
- 5.6 Vacancies. A wacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.
- 5.7 Compensation. Officers may receive such reasonable compensation for their services as may from time to time be fixed by the Board of Directors, provided that the compensation of any officer who is also a director shall be fixed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors then in office.
- 5.8 President. The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have general supervision,

direction, and control of the business and affairs of the Corporation. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and shall, with the Secretary execute on behalf of the Corporation all contracts, agreements, and other instruments. The President shall have the general powers and management usually vested in the office of President of a Corporation, and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors. The President shall also be a nonvoting ex officio member of any committee established pursuant to Article VI hereof.

5.9 Secretary. The Secretary shall prepare and keep (or cause to be prepared and kept) the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and any committees of the Board of Directors and shall have custody of the minute books and other records pertaining to corporate business. The Secretary shall give or cause to be given such notice of the meetings of the Board of Directors as is required by the bylaws. The Secretary shall be responsible for authenticating resolutions and other records of the Corporation and shall countersign on behalf of the Corporation all contracts, agreements, and other instruments. The Secretary shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

5.10 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the Chief Financial and Accounting Officer of the Corporation and shall supervise and munitor the finances of the Corporation. The Treasurer shall (a) cause to be kept correct and complete records of account showing the financial condition of the Corporation, (b) be legal custodian of all moneys, notes, securities, and other valuables that may come unto the possession of the Corporation, (c) cause all funds of the Corporation to be deposited in depositories that the Board of Directors may designate, (d) pay funds out only on the check of the Corporation signed in the manner authorized by the Board of Directors, (e) present to the Board of Directors regular statements of the Corporation's financial position and cash flows, (f) ensure that the Corporation files all necessary tax returns, and (g) maintain the record of all gifts, grants, contribution, gross receipts from admissions, sales of merchandise, performance of services, or furnishing of facilities, in an activity that is not an unrelated trade or business, and the sources of all the forging funds.

7

#### ARTICLE VI COMMITTEES

- 5.1 Creation . The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors then in office, designate and appoint an Executive Committee and such other committees as may be deemed appropriate.
- 6.2 Authority. Each committee appointed by the Board of Directors shall have and may exercise such powers and authority as may be conferred by the Board of Directors, but no committee shall in any event, have the power or authority to (a) amend, alter, or repeal these bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation, (b) elect, appoint, or remove any director or officer, (c) approve dissolution or merger or any sale, pledge, or transfer of all or substantially all of the Corporation's assets, or (d) authorize any distribution of the assets of the Corporation. The designation and appointment of any committees and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors or any individual director of any responsibility imposed by law. The Board of Directors shall have the power at any time to fill vacancies in, to change the size or membership of, and to discharge the Executive Committee and any other committee.
- 6.3 Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of the President and at least two other directors, and the President shall act as Chairman of the Committee. Between meetings of the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee shall, subject to such limitations as may be imposed by resolution of the Board of Directors or applicable law, have and exercise all the power and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation, Executive Committee and any other committee.
- 6.4 Other Committees. All other committees shall consist of at least two directors. The President shall be a nonvoting exofficio member of all other committees.
- 6.5 Meetings. Members of committees shall meet at the call of the Chairman at such place as the Chairman shall designate after reasonable notice has been given to each committee member. Each committee shall keep minutes of its proceedings and within a reasonable time thereafter make a written report to the Board of Directors of its actions. Any action that may be taken by a

committee at a meeting may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action taken is signed by all members of the committee entitled to vote on the matter. The action shall be effective on the date when the last signature is placed on the consent.

6.6 Quorum. A majority of the members of a committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any committee meeting, and any transaction of a committee shall require a majority vote of the quorum present at the meeting.

### ARTICLE VI1 INTEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

7.1 General. The Corporation shall to the fullest extent permitted under Oregon law indemnify any person who is or was a director or officer of the Corporation against any and all liability incurred by such person in connection with any claim, action, suit, or proceeding or any threatened claim, action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director or officer of the Corporation. if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Corporation, and with respect to any criminal proceeding such person had no reasonable cause to believe the conduct was unlawful. Liability and expenses include reasonable attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, costs, and amounts actually paid in settlement. The termination of any action, suit, or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not of itself create a presumption that such person did not act in good faith and in a manner which such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that such conduct was unlawful. The foregoing right of indemnification shall be in addition to and not exclusive of any and all other rights to which any such director or officer may be entitled under any statute, bylaw, agreement, or otherwise.

- 7.2 Actions by or in the Right of the Corporation. In connection with any proceeding brought by or in the right of the Corporation, the Corporation may not indemnify any person who is or was a director or officer of the Corporation if such person has been adjudged by a court of law to be liable to the Corporation, unless the court in which the action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability, in view of all of the circumstances of the case such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity.
- 7.3 Self-interested Transactions. The Corporation may not indemnify any person who is or was a director or officer of the Corporation in connection with any proceeding charging improper personal benefit to such person in which such person has been adjudged liable on the basis that personal benefit was improperly received by such person, unless the court in which the action or suit was brought determines upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability, in view of all circumstances of the case such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity.
- 7.4 Determination of the Property of Indemnification. The determination that indemnification is proper shall be made by the majority vote of a quorum consisting of the Directors who were not parties to the proceeding or, if such a quorum cannot be obtained, by the majority vote of a committee, duly designated by the Board of Directors, consisting of at least two Directors who were not parties to the proceeding. If there are not two Directors who were not parties to the proceeding, the full Board of Directors shall select special legal counsel to determine whether indemnification is proper.
- 7.5 Evaluation of Expenses. An evaluation as to the reasonableness of expenses shall be made by the majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who were not parties to the proceeding or, if such a quorum cannot be obtained, by the majority vote of a committee, duly designated by the Board of Directors, consisting of at least two Directors who were not parties to the proceeding. If there are not two directors who were not parties to the proceeding, the full Board of Directors, who were parties to the proceeding, shall evaluate the reasonableness of expenses.
  - 7.6 Advance of Expenses. Expenses incurred with respect

to any claim, action, suit, or other proceeding of the character described in this article may be advanced by the Corporation prior to the final disposition of such proceeding if (a) the Director or Officer provides written affirmation to the Corporation of such person's good faith belief that such person satisfies the criteria for indemnification, and (b) the Director or Officer gives the Corporation a written undertaking to repay the advanced amount if it is ultimately determined that the Director or Officer is not entitled to indemnification under this article. The undertaking shall be a general obligation of the Director or Officer, but need not be secured and may be accepted by the Board of Directors without reference to the Director or Officer's financial ability to make repayment.

7.7 Insurance. The Board of Directors shall have the power to purchase insurance on behalf of any individual who is or was an Officer or Director of the Corporation against liability asserted against or incurred by such individual arising out of such individual's status as a Director or Officer of the Corporation, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify such individual against liability under the provisions of this article.

## ARTICLE VIII AMENDMENT

The Board of Directors may amend or repeal these bylaws or adopt new bylaws by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Directors then in office, at any meeting of the Board of Directors. The meeting notice shall state that a purpose of the meeting is to consider an amendment to the bylaws and shall contain a copy or summary of the proposed amendment.

The foregoing bylaws were duly adopted by the Board of Directors on the  $2l^2$  day of  $Sc\rho T$  , 1995.

STATE OF OREGON )

1 SS
COUNTY OF MULTNOMAE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this 5 day of 1995, by who is the Section, Inc.

CFRICIAL SEAL
LORI L. HILL
NOTARY PUBLIC-DREGON
COMMISSION NO C14-02
ACCOMM JUNE SYPRES APR. 14, 1996

Notary Public for Oregon My Commission Expires 4/14/96

603

12